### Village Board Meeting Minutes January 7, 2020

The Village of Caledonia Board of Trustees held a meeting on Tuesday, January 7, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. at the Village Office.

**Members Present:** Mayor Scott DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor Jerry O'Donoghue, Trustee Greg Boilard, Janet Cappotelli and Sarah Santora. Also present was Water & Street Superintendent Chris Buckley, Police OIC Jared Passamonte, Code Enforcement Officer Michael Burnside and Village Attorney Ed Russell. Absent was Park Supervisor Barry Ganzhorn.

A **motion** was made by Trustee Cappotelli to approve the December 3, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes; Trustee Santora seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora

NAY: None

### **Open Forum:**

Jim Dutton – Caledonia Fire District: Thanked the Village Board for the new roof and DPW Superintendent Chris Buckley for helping to reinstall the fire antenna and with numerous other repairs at the fire hall.

Cathy Graham – 135 North Street. Asked what was being done regarding 3001 Main Street and the condition of the yard. Mrs. Graham said she filed a complaint with the Livingston County Department of Health. The Village Code Enforcement Officer Michael Burnside received a letter from the LCDOH findings on the complaint and presented copies of the letter to the Village Board. The LCDOH found that the volume of rubbish at this location was insufficient to be considered a public health nuisance. The LDDOH supports the finding that the property contained an accumulation of rubbish or garbage and stated continued improper refuse disposal may be considered a violation of the Property Maintenance Code of the Village of Caledonia. Mayor Diliberto discussed amending Chapter 144 of the Village Code to allow the village to address and enforce property maintenance issues. Mrs. Graham discussed vehicles parked in front of the home with no plates. A violation later can be sent; Village Code allows for 30 days to remove or license the vehicle. The vehicles in front of 3001 Main are being removed and replaced prior to the 30-day notice to comply timeframe expiring. Mayor Diliberto stated that the Village would enter into Executive Session for legal purposes to discuss the matter further. Trustee Santora drove by the residence and spoke with Mike Burnside about what the village can or can't do.

Chris Buckley presented the DPW Report for December. 5,287,000 gallons of water was used and both bacteria tests were negative. Water meters were read for January billing and new meters continue to be installed. Leaf pick-up season concluded and snow/ice control continues. Currently Truck #3 is at Caledonia Diesel awaiting rear end parts. The electrical sub panel was installed at the new DPW shop addition. A **motion** was made by Trustee Cappotelli to accept the report; Trustee Boilard seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

Discussion regarding purchasing a Mack Granite 2020 Model plow truck with equipment and payment options. The vehicle would be available in November/December of 2020 and appropriating will be taken from the 2020-2021 Village Budgets using fund balance and reserves. A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve Chris Buckley to order the Mack Granite 2020 Model plow truck with equipment for \$190,624, Trustee Santora seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve Clerk-Treasurer Ann Marie Grattan to move \$50,802 in the Capital Fund back to the General Equipment Reserve for preparation of the truck payment; Trustee Santora seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

Trustee Janet Cappotelli thanked Chris Buckley and the DPW crew, Jared Passamonte, Mike Burnside, and the Police crew for their presence at the Hometown Holidays.

Clerk-Treasurer Ann Marie Grattan presented the December Clerk Report. Submitted were Budget Status Reports for General, Water, Capital and Trust & Agency Funds, a list of revenues and expenditures, the Financial Report, Department Supervisors payroll and contractual expense reports and the Water Reconciliation Report. Also presented was the Monroe County Water Authority water rates for 2020. The per 1,000-rate decreased by 2 cents. The base rate daily charge increased from \$5.49 to \$7.52 resulting in a \$741 yearly increase. A motion was made Trustee Boilard to accept the report; Trustee Santora seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

Officer-in-Charge Jared Passamonte presented the December Police Report. There were 60 calls for service, 20 traffic tickets issued, 13 Town of Caledonia assists, seven accident reports and two arrests. Officer Estabrooks attended a Livingston County Opioid Task Force meeting in Dansville. OIC Passamonte and Officer Estabrooks were first on scene for two DOA's in the Town of Caledonia. There were several assists to the township with domestic issues in progress. Recruits Brandon Moran and Matt Adams are in the final phase of field training. SRO Officer Burnside has an ongoing investigation involving several individuals at CMCS. The District Attorney's Office is assisting with the investigation. The Caledonia PD assisted with background checks with the ATF, Monroe County Sheriff's Office and New York State Police. SRO Officer Schroeder attended Shop with a Cop at the Walmart in Geneseo. A motion was made by Trustee Cappotelli to accept the report; Trustee Santora seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora

NAY: None

The School Resource Officer Report for the month of December includes five district requests for service, one out-of-building assist, 14 classroom visits and two emergency drills. The SRO's covered Crossing Guard duties for five days. A criminal investigation continues from November. The SRO's participated in an internet safety assembly and testified at a Superintendent's student hearing. A drug investigation began from a parent/student information. An ambulance call was for a staff member. A **motion** was made by Trustee Cappotelli to accept the report; Trustee Santora seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

Trustee Cappotelli, an elementary teacher at CMCS, thanked School Resource Officers Mike Burnside and Stephanie Schroeder for the outstanding job they are doing. Their presence in the three schools has made a significant positive impact on the SRO program.

A motion was made by Trustee Boilard to hire Matt Adams as a part-time Police Officer at \$19.05 per hour; Trustee Santora seconded the motion effective January 7, 2020.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

### Bills were audited and ordered paid:

Abstract #636, General \$4,078.44 & Water \$811.58

Abstract #454, Water \$11,560.45

Abstract #637-638, General \$71,434.76 & Water \$17,633.18

Abstract #455, Water \$370.00

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve the bills paid; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

# Code Enforcement Officer Mike Burnside presented the December CEO Report. The

Caledonia Library has a temporary fundraising sign on premise. Construction inspections were complete at 2972 Main Street, 3220 Lehigh Street and 3184 East Avenue. A final inspection and Certificate of Occupancy was issued to 129 Spring Street. The CEO attended a library meeting regarding the building expansion, NYSERDA Training – Managing Battery Energy Storage Systems in Your Community, the Village Planning Board Meeting in December and updated the Livingston County Sheriff Common Name Report with 30 addresses and added and 47 total updates. Mike recommended that the Village Board review the current solar local law Chapter 174 in the Village Code and determine if it needs to be amended. A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to accept the report; Trustee Boilard seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora

NAY: None

#### **Village of Caledonia**

**Waste Management** – Representative Patrick Martino discussed the proposed contract extension figures for Year 4/5. The cost of recycle services has significantly increased costs. Our current contract is \$183,079, Year 4 \$193,410 – a 5.64% increase and Year 5 \$198,245 – a 2.50% increase. The savings to village residence is approximately 50% a year having garbage/recycle pickup rolled into their village taxes. Mayor DiLiberto stated that Police, DPW and Waste Management service every household in the village and he is in support of keeping these services. A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve the contract extensions Year 4-\$193,410 and Year 5-\$198,245; Trustee Santora seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve Kristen Murphy as the Planning Board alternate member; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

A **motion** was made by Trustee Boilard to approve the 2020 Caledonia War Veterans Parking Lot lease agreement for \$225; Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue for Ed Russell to prepare Local Law #1-2020 – a local law authorizing a property tax levy in excess of the limit established in General Municipal Law §3-c for a March Public Hearing; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

#### Park Report – no report.

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve the gas and electric 2020 contracts with Mirabito. Gas fixed 0.392, electric fixed 0.04741. Trustee Boilard seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli and Santora NAY: None

**Executive Session:** a **motion** was made at 7:30 p.m. by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to enter into Executive Session to discuss legal issues; Trustee Boilard seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora NAY: None

After some discussion, a motion was made at 7:55 p.m. by Trustee Santora to close the Executive Session; Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue seconded the motion.

## **January 7, 2020**

## Village of Caledonia

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora

NAY: None

There being no further business, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue made a motion to adjourn at 8:00 p.m.; Trustee Boilard seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Boilard, Cappotelli & Santora

NAY: None

Ann Marie Grattan Village Clerk-Treasurer